
 

  
 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

Agenda 
 

The July 2015 meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Chemung County Library District will be 
held on Thursday, July 16, 2015, 2015 at 6:00 pm at the Steele Memorial Library, 101 E. 
Church St. Elmira, NY 14901.  The agenda for the meeting is listed below.  If you are unable to 
attend, please inform Mr. Roberts (271-9625), Mrs. Santulli (733-8607), or Mr. Shaw (733-
8611).   
 
1.  Call to order  
2.  Pledge of allegiance 
3.  Approval of minutes (document #2015-37)   
4.  Treasurer’s report 
 a)  Rich Davis (E.F.P. Rotenberg) Audit Review 
 Consent Items: Approval of the CCLD Audit for FY 2014. 
 Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the audit as presented. 
 b)  Financial report (document #2015-38) 
 c)  Report of Unpaid Bills Detail (document #2014-39) 
6.  Correspondence  
7.  President’s report. 
 Consent Items: Approval of the CCLD Board of Trustees Policy 640- Alcohol in 
 Library Facilities. 

Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve policy 640 as presented. 
 Consent Items: Approval of the CCLD Board of Trustees Policy 640- Alcohol in 
 Library Facilities. 
8.  Director’s Report.  
9.  Committee reports:   

a)  Executive Committee (Roberts)  
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document #2014-40) 
b)  Budget & Finance Committee (Schamel) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document #2014-41) 
c)  Building & Grounds Committee (Muldoon) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting  (document #2014-42) 
d) Personnel Committee (Kappanadze)  
Consent Items: Approval of Personnel Actions (Appendix C).  
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve Personnel actions as submitted. 

10. Call for Executive Session 
11.  Old business  
12.  New business 
13.  Period for public expression  
14.  Adjournment  

http://www.ccld.lib.ny.us/�


(Minutes of the JUNE 2015 meeting of the Chemung County Library District Board of Trustees.  
Document #2015-37) 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:07pm by President Richard Roberts. Present were Pat Silvernail, Ann 
Hayes, Georgia Reynolds, Bonnie Chollet, Jack Schamel, Michael Muldoon, Marge Kappanadze, Juan Jones, 
Phyllis Rogan, Rachel Dworkin, and Jim Hare. Excused:  Jessica Roberts.  Absent: Tim Blandford. Also 
present were Ron Shaw, the Library District’s Director and Joan Santulli, the Library District’s Administrative 
Assistant. 
 
Minutes.  The minutes of the May 2015 meeting (Document #2015-31) were presented for board review. The 
minutes were approved as corrected in writing by unanimous consent.   
 
Financial  Report. The May 31, 2015 Financial Report (Document #2015-32) was presented for board 
review. Mr. Schamel stated that the report is self-explanatory. He also explained that the expense line for 
County has been overspent to date due to the many building issues that have required the attention of the 
County Buildings & Grounds Department.  By unanimous consent the May 31, 2015 Financial Report was 
approved as distributed and will be filed for audit.   
 
Report of Unpaid Bills (Document #2015-33). By unanimous consent, the board authorizes the payment of 
the unpaid bills dated 6/9/15 – General Fund $32,114.59 and Grant Fund $3,629.83 as distributed.   

 
Correspondence.   A thank you note was received from the Headstart Carnival Committee for the Youth 
Services staff’s participation in their recent event.  

 
President’s Report.  Regarding the change in the Legislation to allow the Executive Committee to approve 
interim bills, Mr. Roberts reported that the change has passed the State Assembly and will now go to the State 
Senate for their review and decision. 
CONSENT ITEMS: 

• Approval of CCLD/CSEA contract.  After discussion, Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by Mr. Hare to 
approve the following:  Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the Tentative Contract 
Agreement By and Between the Chemung County Library District and Civil Service Employees 
Association and the CCLD CSEA Unit #6362 for January 1, 2015 and ending December 31, 2017.  
VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  

• Approval to use Board of Elections petition form. Ms. Silvernail moved, seconded by Mr. Muldoon to 
approve the following: Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the use of the nominating 
petition of the Chemung County Board of Elections by candidates for election to the CCLD Board of 
Trustees. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  

• Approval of the CCLD Board of Trustees Policy 640 – Alcohol in Library Facilities. Following 
discussion, the board revised the policy as follows: (l) Restrict it to groups that support the Library 
District; (2) Restrict the use of alcohol to be served when the building is closed; (3) Omit the 
restriction that it can only be served in the meeting room but add that the group sponsoring the 
program is responsible for any damages to the library; (4) Change the title to “Use of Alcohol in 
Library Facilities”; (5) a fee of $150 – the board can waive the fee upon consideration’ (6) to put in the 
policy that the group needs the million dollar insurance policy listing the Library District as additional 
insured;  and (7) it is the responsibility of the group utilizing the library to contact the Director for 
access to the building and to secure the building after the event.  Staff members who work the event 
would do so on a voluntary basis. Mr. Jones moved, seconded by Ms. Silvernail to send the revised 
policy to the CCLD Attorney for his review prior to board approval. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  

 
 
 
 



Director’s Report.   Mr. Shaw discussed the following: 
CONSENT ITEMS:  

• Approval of Summer hours. Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Ms. Reynolds to adopt the following: 
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the Chemung County Library District Summer 
hours for Monday, June 15, 2015 through Saturday, September 5, 2015. VOTE: Unanimously 
Approved.  

• Approval of donation from Friends of the Chemung County Library District. Mr. Hare moved, 
seconded by Mr. Jones to adopt the following: Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the 
donation of $3,450 from the Friends of CCLD - $1,000 for Spooky Stacks; $1,600 for the Summer 
Reading Club; and $850 for the West Elmira Summer Reading Club programs. VOTE: Unanimously 
Approved.  

• Approval of Digital Media Lab Rules of Use.  Ms. Chollet moved, seconded by Ms. Reynolds to adopt 
the following: Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the Digital Media Lab Rules of Use 
with the addition that users of the room can collect their picture ID upon clearance of the room by a 
CCLD staff member.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  

 
CCLD Issues.  
   Zinio. The contract for the electronic online magazines has been signed. The cost will be paid as follows:         
   $5,000 from the Central Library funding and $6,000 from the CCLD magazine expense line. It will go live         
   on July 1st.  The Southeast Steuben Library has pitched in $1,000 to purchase more content.  
   Transparent Languages Online.  This replaces Mango Language online. A three-year contract has been  
   signed at $1,600 per year to be paid from local database funds.  This software has more capability for use for  
   ESL (English as a Second Language). 
   IndieFlix. This new service has online films of a wide variety from 2 minute films to feature films. The three  
   year contract is $1,350 per year to be paid with local database funding. All 43 libraries located in the  
   Southern Tier Library System boundaries will be able to utilize these three new services.  
   Scheduling software.   This has gone live and staff is working on learning it.  Internal issues are being  
   worked out.  Department Heads will be able to approve time off for their staff.  Individual staff training will  
   need to take place.  
 
The Director's Report (Appendix A) and the CCLD Staff Reports (Appendix B) for last month were submitted 
in writing to the board.  

Executive Committee.  The report of the Executive Committee was presented in writing to the board 
(Document #2015-34). President Roberts stated he sent a letter to the Chemung County Board of Elections 
informing them that according to our lawyer, the Election Law determines that CCLD cannot eliminate write-
in votes for the trustee elections.  Petitions for election are due to CCLD by the end of August to meet Board 
of Election deadlines; however, the Legislation states that CCLD must accept petitions up to 36 days before 
the election.  
 
Regarding the Maker Expo held on May 30, 2015, Ms. Reynolds moved, seconded by Ms. Rogan to commend 
Deb Brimmer, CCLD’s Network Specialist and CCLD staff members for the excellent job in making this 
event such a huge success this year. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  
 

Budget & Finance Committee.  The report of the Budget & Finance Committee meeting was presented in 
writing to the board (Document #2015-35). Ms. Santulli reported that EFP Rotenberg, the auditors doing the 
2014 audit of CCLD finances, will be attending both the Budget & Finance Committee meeting in July and 
will present the audit to the full board at the meeting on July 16, 2015. 
 
Buildings & Grounds Committee. The report of the Buildings & Grounds Committee meeting was presented 
in writing to the board (Document #2015-36). Mr. Muldoon reported the Chiller project at the Steele Library 
has been submitted to STLS for consideration of State Construction Funding.  Mr. Shaw has also spoken to 



Senator O’Mara’s office regarding the possibility of CCLD being eligible for an approximate $150,000 from 
Economic Development Funds for this project. The intent to apply for State Funding will take place at STLS 
on June 23rd. The work on the bathroom at the Big Flats Library is complete and the restroom at the West 
Elmira Library is being worked on.  Regarding a tree in front of the West Elmira Library, one of the neighbors 
has requested that the tree be removed as he feels that 50% of it is on his property. A quote from Renko to 
remove the tree was estimated at $2,700.   Mr. Muldoon will investigate and report back to the Buildings & 
Grounds Committee.  The County Buildings & Grounds Department will be replacing several sidewalk blocks 
at the Steele Library as requested by our insurance company. The installation of Dark Fiber for CCLD 
libraries should start by the end of FY 2015.  STLS is requesting construction grant funds to assist in the cost.  
CCLD has not received the exact amounts of how much will be our share in this venture.  
 
CONSENT ITEMS: 

• Approval of bid award for Elevator Modernization Project.  Mr. Muldoon moved, seconded by Mr. 
Schamel to adopt the following:  Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the 
recommendation of Hung Engineering to award the Elevator Modernization Project to Elmira 
Structures – said amount of bid being $104,000.  VOTE:  Unanimously Approved.  

• Approval of purchase of fire alarms and security systems for branch libraries. Updated quotes for this 
project have not been received.  The matter will be tabled.  

 
 
Personnel Committee.  Ms. Kappanadze stated that she has received the contracts for the counseling services 
and organization evaluation. The quote is $6,220 and it exceeds the amount previously approved by the board 
by $3,220.  The contract calls for two organizational evaluations – one this month and the second 6 months 
later.  If the second evaluation is not necessary, CCLD will save $2,220.  Ms. Reynolds moved, seconded by 
Mr. Schamel to approve the contract as submitted in writing.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  
 
CONSENT ITEM – Approval of Personnel Actions. (Appendix C). Mr. Muldoon moved, seconded by Ms. 
Chollet to approve the Personnel Actions as submitted to the board.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
 
Old Business.  None. 
 
Public Expression.   None 
 
New Business.  None  
 
 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:42pm. The next regular meeting of the board will be held on Thursday, July 
16th, 2015 at 6:00pm at the Steele Memorial Library, 101 East Church Street, Elmira, New York. 



















Document #2015-40 
 
Report of the July 1st, 2015 meeting of the Executive Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District:   
 
Attending the meeting from the Executive Committee were Richard Roberts, Rachel Dworkin, 
Marge Kappanadze, Georgia Reynolds, Jack Schamel; and Joan Santulli, CCLD management.  Other 
board members in attendance were Ann Hayes, Jim Hare, Bonnie Chollet, Pat Silvernail and Phyllis 
Rogan. The meeting opened at 6:00pm.   
 
Ms. Santulli presented the Unpaid Bills Detail dated 7/1/15 for the General Fund in the amount of 
$36,321.00 and the Grant Fund - $15,242.64.  Ms. Hayes moved, seconded by Mr. Hare to pay the 
bills as listed. VOTE:  Unanimously Approved.   
 
President’s Report.   

• The change in the Legislation that will allow the Executive Committee to approve interim 
invoice has passed both the State House and Senate with a 3-year sunset clause. Once the bill 
is signed by the Governor, the Board will need to pass a resolution delegating the authority 
to the Executive Committee to approve invoices.  

• STN or Dark Fiber.  The Southern Tier Library System is paying the full price of installation 
and expects it to be complete by the end of the year.  

• Steele Library Concert Series. Five weekly concerts being on Tuesday, July 7th. They are 
being sponsored by the Friends of CCLD.  

• Alcohol Policy. The update version has been forwarded to the Attorney for his review. 
Approval will be placed as a consent item on the July board meeting agenda.  

• Letter from the Public Library Foundation of Chemung County (Horseheads). Mr. Roberts 
received a letter that requests permission to hold the dedication of the Earle R. Catlin 
Meeting Room at the Horseheads Library on Monday, October 12, 2015.  The library will be 
closed on that date.  The building would be needed form 4pm-7pm.  The unveiling of the 
plaque will take place at 6pm.  The Foundation is willing to reimburse CCLD for any 
staffing expenses associated with the reception.  Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Ms. 
Chollet to make a special exception of CCLD’s Meeting Room Policy to allow the 
Horseheads Foundation to utilize the Horseheads Library while it is closed on October 12, 
2015 for the purposes of the dedication of the Earle R. Catlin Meeting Room and the 
reception that will follow.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  

 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:15pm.  The next meeting of the Executive Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District will be held on Wednesday, August 5th, 2015 at 6pm in the Petrie 
Conference Room of the Steele Memorial Library.   



Document #2015-41 
 
Report of the July 8th, 2015 meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District.  
 
Attending the meeting were CCLD board members Rick Roberts, Jack Schamel and Marge 
Kappanadze and Community Members Sue Cook and Robin Fitzgerald.  Also attending was 
Joan Santulli and Ron Shaw, CCLD Administration and Rich Davis of EFP Rotenberg.  The 
meeting opened at 8:00am.  
 
Rich Davis, representing the auditing firm of EFP Rotenberg was present to review the draft  
audit of CCLD’s 2014 Financial Statements and their findings for said year. He stated that there 
have been no significant changes from the 2013 audit of the books. EFP’s management letter 
does not render an opinion on CCLD’s internal controls. After reviewing the audit in detail with 
the Committee, the audit will be finalized by EFP and Mr. Davis will present the final audit to 
the full board at their July 16th meeting.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the July 31st, 2015 Financial Report to the Committee. Ms. Santulli stated 
that the Overtime & Holiday line is overspent and will continue to be used throughout the rest of 
the year.  The overage is due in large part to the IT Department staff receiving overtime pay 
instead of comp time accruals as per the union. The Report will be forwarded to the full CCLD 
board for its consideration.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the 7/8/15 Unpaid Bills Detail for the General Fund bills totaling 
$67,591.36.  The list includes the second quarter payment to the Chemung County Treasurer for 
Debt Service ($15,592.91) and the second quarter payment to STLS for Cost Share costs 
($27,973.75).  The Unpaid Bills Detail will be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its 
consideration.  
 
Mr. Shaw and Ms. Santulli presented the first draft of the proposed 2016 CCLD Budget to the 
Committee. The first draft shows an increase in the tax revenues of 1.76%. The Committee 
reviewed the budget in detail.  The draft copy will be sent to the full board for review at the July 
16th board meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:10am.  The next meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee will 
be held on Wednesday, August 12th, 2015 at 8:00am in the Petrie Conference Room of the Steele 
Memorial Library.   



Document #2015-42 
 
Report of the July 1st, 2015 meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee of the Chemung County 
Library District 
 
The meeting opened at 5:30pm. Present were Mr. Muldoon, Mr. Hare, Ms. Hayes and Mr. Roberts. Also 
attending were Joan Santulli and Ron Shaw, CCLD Management.   
 
The Committee received reports on the following: 

o Elevator Project at Steele.  The Library Board officially awarded the contract to Elmira Structures at 
their June 18th meeting.  Construction is proposed to start mid-August and be complete by mid-
September.  

o Other State Construction Projects.  Mr. Shaw made a presentation to the Southern Tier Library 
System for the Chiller Project at the Steele Library. STLS sent a notice that they have approved a 
total of $101,763 to be awarded for this project from New York State Construction funds.  

o Taitem Energy Audit. There is no update on the Energy Audit at this time. 
o Fire Alarm. Mr. Shaw reported that he has a new quote from FAST to install security systems and 

fire alarms at the West Elmira, Big Flats and Horseheads Libraries.  The quote is $43,552.  The 
consensus of the Committee is to drop consideration of this installation.  No action was taken at this 
time.  

o Trees at Horseheads Library. Renko Tree Service was working on removing the tree. 
o West Elmira Library. The County B&G has been working on issues regarding the restroom 

at this library.    
o West Elmira Library.  The request from a neighbor to remove the tree in the front of the 

library was discussed.  Mr. Muldoon spoke to the neighbor today.  Based on the fact that the 
tree is not an issue for CCLD, this removal will probably not be approved. The matter is 
table for the time being.  

o Dark Fiber. STLS will be bearing all costs for the installation and it should be complete by 
the end of the year. 

o Steele Library. Regarding sidewalk slabs that have shifted, the County Buildings & Grounds 
Department will begin the repairs next week.  CCLD is still awaiting confirmation from the 
State regarding approval of the funding for the “Bathroom” renovation project.  

o Mechanical Room Cleanup. Mr. Shaw and the Steele Maintenance Department continue to 
work on cleaning out the upstairs Mechanical Room at the Steele Library. 

 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:50pm.  
 
 The next regular meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee will be held on Wednesday, August 5th, 
2015 at 5:30pm in the Petrie Conference Room at the Steele Memorial Library. 
 


	Agenda 2015-7
	Document 2015-37
	Document 2015-38
	Document 2015-39
	Document 2015-40
	Document 2015-41
	Document 2015-42

